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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

) 
UNITED STATES SECURITIES ) 
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

- PlzTitTff, 

v.  1 COMPLAINT 
1 

MARK P. ABIDE,  ) 
1 

Defendant.  ) 
) 

The United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Co 

the "SEC") alleges for its Complaint as follows: 

SUMMARY 

1. WorldCom, Inc. ("WorldCom" or the "Company") was one of the world's 

largest publicly held telecommunications companies. At its peak in the summer of 1999, 

WorldCom's market capitalization exceeded $1 80 billion. Three years later, WorldCom 

filed for bankruptcy protection, effectively wiping out all shareholder equity in the 

Company, in the wake of revelations that its reported financial results were falsely 

inflated due to a long-term fraudulent accounting scheme designed and executed by 

WorldCom's senior management and certain of its employees to deceive the public as to 

the Company's true financial performance. 

2. Defendant, Mark P. Abide ("Abide" or "Defendant"), worked in 

WorldCom's corporate accounting department. From approximately 2000 to 2003, 

Abide's title was Director of Property Accounting. His duties as Director of Property 



Accounting included supervising the accurate and correct recording of transactions 

involving the Company's capital assets in the Company's books and records. 

3. From at least as early as April 2001 until late June 2002, Abide, together 

with other senior WorldCom executives and employees, engaged in a fi-audulent scheme 

and records to make WorldComYs reported quarterly and annual financial results meet 

artificial and unrealistic performance targets set by WorldCom's senior management and 

the expectations of Wall Street analysts. These adjustments and entries did not accord 

with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"), and resulted in WorldCom 

falsely understating its expenses and overstating its earnings by approximately $3.6 

billion. 

4. In early 2002, at the same time that he was actively participating in the 

accounting fraud, Abide sold 99% of all WorldCom stock that he owned. By doing so 

prior to the public revelation of the accounting fraud in which he was engaged and the 

corresponding drop in the price of WorldCom stock, Abide avoided losses of nearly 

$58,000. 

5. By engaging in this conduct, Abide violated the antifiaud, books and 

records, and internal controls provisions of the federal securities laws, and aided and 

abetted WorldComYs violations of the reporting, books and records, and internal control 

provisions of the federal securities laws. The Commission requests that this Court 

permanently enjoin Abide from further violations of the federal securities laws as alleged 

herein, order him to disgorge all ill-gotten gains and pay prejudgment interest thereon, 

pay civil money penalties, order that the amount of such disgorgement and penalties be 



- - - -- - - - 

added to and become part of the WorldCom Victim Trust, a fair fund benefiting the 

victims of the fraudulent accounting scheme at WorldCom, and order such other and 

further relief as the Court may deem appropriate. 

-- -- -JURISDICTION AM)V E N D  -

6 .  The ~&nmission brings this action pursuant to Sections 20@) and 20(d) of 

the Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities Act") [15 U.S.C. §§77t(b) and (d)] and Section 

21(d) of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78u(d)]. 

7. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 22(a) of the 

Securities Act [ 15 U.S.C. §77u(a)] and Sections 2 1 (e) and 27 of the Exchange Act [ 15 

U.S.C. §§78u(e) and 78aal. The Defendant, directly or indirectly, used the means or 

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or the facilities of a national 

securities exchange in connection with the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of 

business alleged in this Complaint. 

8. Certain of the acts, practices, and courses of conduct constituting the 

violations of law alleged in this Complaint occurred within this judicial district, and, 

therefore, venue is proper pursuant to Section 22 of the Securities Act and Section 27 of 

the Exchange Act. 

9. The Defendant, directly and indirectly, has engaged in, and unless 

restrained and enjoined by this Court will continue to engage in, transactions, acts, 

practices, and courses of business that violate Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 

U.S.C. §77q(a)] and Sections lo@) and 13@)(5) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 

§§78j(b) and 78m(b)(5)] and Rules lob-5 and1 3b2- 1 thereunder [ 17 C.F.R. §§240.10b-5 

and 240.13b2- 11 and aid and abet violations of Sections 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A) and 



13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§78m(a), 78m(b)(2)(A) and 78m(b)(2)(B)] 

and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder [17 C.F.R. SS240.12b-20,240.13a-1 and 

240.13a-131. 

DEFENDANT 
--- - - -- - - -- - - - A-

& > 

10. ark^. ~ b i d e , a ~ e44, resides in Richardson, Texas. He served as the 

Director of Property Accounting at WorldCom and, during the relevant time period, 

reported to Buford Yates, Jr., Director of General Accounting. From March 1993 

through February 28,2006, Abide was licensed as a CPA in Texas. On July 24,2003, 

Abide signed a non-prosecution agreement with the government in exchange for 

cooperating in the criminal investigation of the WorldCom accounting fiaud. 

THE ISSUER 

11. At all times relevant to this Complaint, WorldCom was incorporated in 

Georgia and based in Clinton, Mississippi. It provided a broad range of communication 

services to businesses and consumers in more than 65 countries. During the relevant time 

period, the common stock of WorldCom was registered with the Commission pursuant to 

Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act and was listed and traded on the Nasdaq National 

Market System. WorldCom was required to file periodic reports with the Commission 

pursuant to Section 13 of the Exchange Act. The company's common stock, bonds, and 

notes were covered by Wall Street analysts who routinely issued quarterly and annual 

earnings estimates. On July 21,2002, WorldCom and substantially all of its active U.S. 

subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. 

Bankruptcy Code. When WorldCom emerged from bankruptcy in April 2004, it merged 

with and into MCI, Lnc., whereby the separate existence of WorldCom ceased and MCI 
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became the surviving company. Verizon Communications acquired MCI on January 6, 

2006. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

A. Relevant Accounting Principles 

l - 2 P ' i c c o i c p a n i e s ,  such as WorldCom, typically reportthe financial results 

of their operations in financial statements that include both an income statement and a 

balance sheet. A company's income statement reports, among other things, revenue 

recognized, expenses incurred, and income earned during a stated period of time- 

usually for a fiscal quarter or a fiscal year. Within an income statement, expenses are 

generally subtracted from revenues to calculate income. A company's balance sheet 

reports, among other things, the assets and liabilities of a company at a point in time, 

usually as of the end of the company's fiscal quarter or fiscal year. 

13. When companies spend money or incur costs, those expenditures can be 

accounted for in a variety of ways depending on the nature of the transaction. Some 

types of expenditures, most commonly those incurred by a company in its normal 

operations, are treated as current period costs or "operating expenses." Examples of 

operating expenses.include recurring costs such as salaries and wages, insurance, 

equipment rental, electricity, and maintenance contracts. Generally, almost all routine 

expenditures that a company makes are operating expenses. 

14. Other types of expenditures, most commonly those that result in the 

acquisition of, or improvement to, the company's assets, are treated as "capital 

expenditures." Examples of capital expenditures include purchases of real estate, 

manufacturing equipment, and computer equipment. 



- 
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15; Operating expenses and capital expenditures generally receive different 

accounting treatment. Operating expenses are generally reported on a company's income 

statement and subtracted fiom revenues in the period in which the expense is incurred or 

paid, resulting in the company's pretax net income for that period. Capital expenditures, 

by contrast, are not subtracted firom revenues and generally are not reflected on the 

income statement. Instead, capital expenditures are reported as capital assets on a 

company's balance sheet. 

16. If a company makes entries in its accounts that effectively reclassify or 

transfer a given expenditure from an "operating expenseJJ to a "capital asset," that action 

will have the following effects on the company's financial statements: (a) the 

reclassification or transfer will reduce the company's operating expenses, and the 

company's pretax net income consequently will increase by the amount reclassified or 

transferred; (b) the value of the company's capital assets and total assets will increase by 

the amount reclassified or transferred; and (c) the value of the company's net worth will 

increase. 

17. One of WorldCom's major operating expenses reported on its income 

statements, which were periodically filed with the Commission, was its so-called "line 

costs." Line costs represented the various fees WorldCom paid to third-party 

telecommunications carriers for WorldCom's right to access the third-party's network 

facilities in order to serve customers who were not directly connected to WorldCom's 

own network. Under GAAP, these fees must be reported as an expense on a company's 

income statement. 
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B. Capitalization of Line Costs to Fraudulently Inflate Income 

18. Starting in about 1999, WorldCom entered into a large number of long- 

term lease agreements with various third-party carriers to gain access to facilities beyond 

WorldCom's own networks. At the time, WorldCom anticipated that Internet businesses 
- -

w ~ u l - ~ i f e r a t e X F & d  increase thedemand for WorldCom services. Many of 

these leases required WorldCom to pay a fixed sum to the third-party carrier over the full 

term of the lease regardless of whether WorldCom and its customers actually used all or 

part of the capacity of the leased facility. These fixed payments to third parties were part 

of WorldCom's line costs. 

19. By early 2001, it was plain to CEO Bernard Ebbers, CFO Scott Sullivan, 
I 

Controller David Myers, and other senior officers at WorldCom that much of the capacity 

WorldCom leased from third parties would be underutilized by its customers and, 

therefore, would not produce sufficient revenue in the future to justify the cost of the 

leases. This underutilization of leased lines increased WorldCom's expenses as a 

percentage of revenue, hurt WorldCom's bottom line, and endangered WorldCom's 

ability to meet its performance targets and analyst and market expectations. 

20. Instead of lowering WorldCom's financial performance targets and 

adjusting analyst and market expectations downwards due to these expenses, with the 

full knowledge and consent of CEO Ebbers, CFO Sullivan directed Controller Myers and 

the General Accounting department to begin capitalizing line costs--essentially 

reclassifying as "assets" what were in fact operating expenses. 

2 1. At the end of each quarter, beginning with the first quarter of 2001, 

Sullivan and Myers would determine the size of what they cryptically called the "non- 



-- - -- -- -- - - - - -  -- - - - 

cash" or "on top" adjustment (i.e. the amount of capitalized line cost expenses) needed to 

hide the shortfall between WorldCom7s actual financial results and the Wall Street 

estimates. Myers would then go to Buford "Buddy" Yates, Jr., WorldCom's Director of 

General Accounting, (or sometimes directly to those persons reporting to Yates. such as 
-

A 

Troy Normand, a manager within ~ e i e r a l  Accounting) and tell him to record e z e s  of a 

certain size. A manager in the General Accounting Department, usually Betty Vinson, 

then credited specific line cost expense accounts on the general ledger and 

correspondingly debited either an asset holding account called "Construction in Progress" 

("CIP") with the lump sum or several in-service asset accounts that Defendant Abide 

would select with smaller sums. 

22. In an attempt to conceal the improper capitalization fiom WorldCom7s 

auditors and the investing public, Abide consistently spread the fraudulent "capital" 

expenditures among three of WorldCom's largest asset accounts-Transmission 

Equipment, Communications Equipment, and Furniture, Fixtures & Other-and ensured 

that the resulting bogus "assets" were given depreciable lives typical for the type of asset 

in each account. 

23. Once General Accounting had booked the capitalization entries, Abide 

altered previously prepared quarterly reports to include the improperly capitalized line 

costs. Specifically, Abide would revise the Property, Plant & Equipment ("PP&E") Roll 

Forward schedule, a report that tracked all of WorldCom's assets and documented their 

acquisition, disposition, and transfer dates during the quarter. Abide was responsible for 

preparing the PP&E Roll Forward schedule and knew that it was routinely provided to 
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both Financial Reporting (which was responsible for preparing WorldCom's SEC filings) 

and WorldCom's auditors. 

24. Later, often several months after the close of the quarter, Abide would 

further bury and disguise the improperly capitalized amounts by taking the sums debited 

"?Ofhe in-seGG asitacciiiiiits and breaking them down into specific assets. 

C. Abide's Specific Actions in Furtherance of WorldCom's Fraud 

25. In April 2001, General Accounting Manager Normand informed Abide 

that pursuant to a directive fiom CFO Sullivan and Controller Myers, General 

Accounting was booking an entry of $544 million to the CIP asset holding account to 

reflect under-utilized capacity. Normand asked Abide for the CIP account number and 

instructed him to adjust accordingly the PP&E Roll Forward schedule. Despite Abide's 

initial concerns about the high dollar amount of the adjustment, the unusual source of the 

directive (CFO Sullivan and Controller Myers as opposed to the field), the fact that he 

had never before been asked to make an "adjustment"-that large to the PP&E Roll 

Forward schedule, and the fact that there was no support for the adjustment, Abide 

instructed his subordinate to update the Roll Forward schedule with the $544 million 

additioq to the CIP account and ensure that all the numbers on the PP&E Roll Farward 

schedule tied back to the general ledger. 

26. After the end of the second quarter, in July 2001, General Accounting 

Manager Normand again informed Abide that Controller Myers and General Accounting 

were booking an entry, this time for $560 million. Again, Abide received no support for 

the entry other than the fact that CFO Sullivan and Controller Myers had decided on the 

number. Despite his increasing concern about the "on top," "non-cash" adjustments, 
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Abide directed his subordinates to make parallel adjustments to the PP&E Roll Forward 

schedule. In fact, after the PP&E Roll Forward schedule had once again been updated 

pursuant to his orders, Abide was so troubled that he asked another member of his team 

to discover what actually was being capitalized through these adjustments. Thereafter, 

A-

Abide learnedhat WorldEm wasimproperly capitalizing line costs. Despite this 

knowledge, Abide did nothing to stop the fraud, and in fact continued to make the 

improper adjustments as directed. 

27. In August 2001, Abide learned that Arthur Andersen, WorldCom's 

auditors, would be conducting an annual audit of WorldCom's property accounts, 

including the CIP account, to test and verify the accounts' numbers and balances. This 

alarmed Abide because over $1.1 billion of capitalized line costs fi-om prior quarters were 

being held in the CIP account without any support. He knew that such an audit could 

reveal the enties that he and General Accounting had made. Therefore, Abide spoke 

with Controller Myers and General Accounting Manager Nonnand to discuss what they 

should do. In response, Myers directed Abide to transfer the capitalized line costs out of 

the CIP account and into in-service accounts because the in-service accounts would be 

subject to less scrutiny during the audit. 

28. Shortly after his discussion with Myers and Normand, Abide personally 

prepared and booked the entry in the general ledger transferring the $544 million first 

quarter corporate adjustment out of the CIP account and into an asset clearing account. 

That same day, August 22,2001, Abide went into the property accounting asset 

subledger, took the $544 million out of the asset clearing account, split it up into ten 

separate amounts of $54.4 million each, and booked these ten bogus "assets" into an in- 
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service asset account for Fiber Optic Cable: Because Abide still had no support for these  

entries and there was no actual "Fiber Optic Cable" asset, Abide named each of the ten  

assets he had just created, "SS capacity," meaning Scott ~ u l l i v h  prepaid capacity.  

29. After concealing the first quarter capitalization amount of $544 million. 

-

bide moved outof the C% acc=t the second quarter adjustment of $560 million on  

September 20,2001, though through a slightly different process. Myers had instructed  

Abide to spread the transferred amounts among different asset categories and to give the  

resulting "assets" a useful life (for depreciation purposes) that approximated the average  

life of the asset base. Thus, instead of dividing the lump sum into 10 equal amounts and  

placing them into one asset account, as he did with the first quarter adjustment, Abide  

directed his subordinates to split the $560 million into different dollar amounts and place  

them into various asset accounts. Ultimately 12 different journal entries were made  

spreading the $560 million among three asset accounts: the Ocean Cable account, the  

Fiber Optic Cable account, and the Computer Equipment account. Each of the 12 bogus  

"assets" created were labeled "SS number 2 per Mark Abide," indicating that these were  

again Scott Sullivan prepaid capacity entries that Abide allocated to asset accounts  

without any support.  

30. The following month, in October 2001, CFO Sullivan and Controller  

Myers determined that they needed to capitalize approximately $743 million of line costs  

for the third quarter in order to make WorldCom's desired numbers. As had been done  

during the quarter closing process for the first and second quarters, General Accounting  

Manager Normand told Abide to update the PP&E Roll Forward schedule. Because they  

were no longer using the CIP account to hold the capitalization amounts, General  
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Accounting also needed Abide and his group to prepare the entries and provide the asset 

account numbers to be debited. General Accounting then took the prepared entries and 

booked them on the general ledger. 

31. By at least October 2001, Abide was hl ly  aware that the "on top," "non- 
pp  

--2--

cash'Qjustments were not true assets, but line cost expenses capitalized to meet 

earnings targets. Despite this knowledge, Abide directed his subordinates to draft the 

journal entries dividing the $743 million capitalized line cost entry into the Transmission 

Equipment and Communications Equipment asset accounts and to update the PP&E Roll 

Forward schedule to reflect the entries. In doing so, Abide again attempted to conceal the 

fraudulent accounting by burying the improper entries within WorldCom7s asset 

accounts. Later, in approximately March 2002, Abide directed a subordinate to further 

submerge the improper line cost capitalization amounts by creating fixed assets within 

the Transmission Equipment and Communications Equipment accounts on the property 

accounting subledger. 

32. In late January 2002, Sullivan and Myers determined the adjustments that 

needed to be made to meet their desired numbers for the fourth quarter of 2001, and 

General Accounting Manager Normand provided Abide with the capitalization amount of 

$941 million. Abide directed his subordinates: to provide General Accounting with the 

asset account numbers to be debited, to update the PP&E Roll Forward schedule 

accordingly, and then later (in March) to create the requisite assets tagged with an "SS" 

(indicating a Scott Sullivan prepaid capacity entry) on the property accounting subledger 

in an attempt to hide the improper capitalization. 



-- -- - - - - - - -- - - - -  -- 

33. In April 2002, General Accounting Director Yates, General Accounting 

Manager Normand and General Accounting Manager Vinson called Abide and asked him 

to book into the general ledger a line cost capitalization entry of $8 18 million for the' first 

quarter of 2002. Though he refused to direct his staff to make the entries for this request 
-

k n G i i n g h e y  were fraudulent, Abide provided General Accounting with the asset 

accounts that needed to be debited with the capitalized line cost amounts. Once General 

Accounting booked the entry, Abide updated the PP&E Roll Forward schedule to reflect 

the artificial increase in assets. Shortly thereafter, in June 2002, Abide told a subordinate 

to take the line cost capitalization amounts that had been booked into the asset accounts 

in April and create the necessary fixed assets on the property accounting subledger. 

Through these actions, Abide once again deliberately attempted to bury and conceal the 

improper capitalization of line costs. 

D. Abide's Sale of WorldCom Stock During the Fraud 

34. At the same time that Abide and the other employees were fraudulently 

capitalizing line costs to meet performance targets and Wall Street earnings estimates, 

Abide sold 99% of his holdings of WorldCom stock. Prior to the sales, Abide's entire 

401(k) plan was invested in WorldCom stock, and Abide owned a total of 6,782.51 

shares. On January 24,2002, Abide decided to diversify his holdings and sold 1,628 

shares (24% of his holdings) at $12.5466 per share for a total of $20,425.92. A few days 

later, on February 4,2002, Abide sold 5,100 shares of the remaining 5,154.5 1 shares of 

WorldCom stock left in his 401(k) account. He sold these shares at $8.2424 per share for 

a total of $42,036.67. By the end of these two transactions, Abide had reduced his 
1 

holdings in WorldCom by 99%, leaving him with only 54.5 103 shares. Abide used the 

http:$20,425.92
http:$42,036.67


$62,462.59 in proceeds to purchase mutual h d s  in his 401(k) account. By selling his 

stock while he participated in WorldCom7s financial fraud, and in advance of the 

Company's public disclosure regarding the fraud, Abide avoided losses of approximately 

FIRSjT CLAIM  

Violations of Exchange Act Section lo@) and Exchange Act Rule lob-5  

[Fraud In Connection with the Purchase or Sale of Securities]  

35. Paragraphs 1 through 34 above are incorporated herein by this reference. 

36. In connection with the above described acts and omissions, Defendant 

Abide, directly or indirectly, by use of the means or instruments of interstate commerce, 

or of the mails, or of a facility of a national securities exchange, knowingly or recklessly 

(a) employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue statements of 

material fact or omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements 

made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or (c) 

engaged in acts, transactions, practices, and courses of business which operated or would , 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchasers of securities and upon other persons, in 

connection with the purchase or sale of a security. 

37. By reason of the foregoing, Abide violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange 

Act and Exchange Act Rule lob-5 [15 U.S.C. §78j(b) and 17 C.F.R. 5240.10b-51. 

SECOND CLAIM  

Violations of Exchange Act Section lo@) and Exchange Act Rule lob-5  

[Insider Trading]  

38. Paragraphs 1 through 37 above are incorporated herein by this reference. 
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39. At the same time that Abide engaged in the fraudulent accounting scheme  

at WorldCom, he sold 99% of his holdings of WorldCom stock, avoiding losses of  

approximately $5 8,000.  

40. By selling his stock when in possession of material, nonpublic iiformation 

a b e u ~ ~ n ~ i a ~ c 0 ~ i t i o 7 1 7 ) ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 0 ~ ~ k ~ ~ ~ d ~ t e a  -

Section 100) of the Exchange Act and Exchange Act Rule lob-5 [15 U.S.C. §78j(b) and  

17 C.F.R. S240.10b-51.  

THIRD CLAIM  

Violations of Securities Act Section 17(a)  

[Fraud in Connection with the Offer or Sale of Securities]  

41. Paragraphs 1 through 40 above are incorporated herein by this reference. 

42. From the first quarter of 2001 through the first quarter of 2002,  

WorldCom sold over $10 billion of corporate bonds to the investing public. In  

connection with these offerings, WorldCom filed registration statements with the  

Commission incorporating its quarterly and annual reports and attached financial  

statements. Thus, as a result of Abide's fraudulent actions, WorldCom's balance sheet  

and cash flow statements, which were included in the Company's quarterly and annual  

filings with the Commission, contained materially false information.  

43. As a consequence of the foregoing, Defendant Abide, in the offer or sale  

of securities, by the use of means or instruments of transportation or communication in  

interstate commerce, or by the use of the mails, directly or indirectly: (a) employed  

devices, schemes or artifices to defraud; or (b) obtained money or property by means of  

untrue statements of material facts or omissions to state material facts necessary in order  

to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were  

made, not misleading; or (c) engaged in transactions, practices or courses of business  

which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon purchasers of securities.  



44. In connection with the above described acts and omissions, Abide acted 

knowingly, recklessly, or negligently. He knew, or was reckless in not knowing, or 

should have known, that the above-mentioned filings with the Commission contained 

material misstatements and omissions. As a result, Defendant Abide violated Section 

FOURTH CLAIM 

Violations of Exchange Act Section 13(b)(5) and Exchange Act Rule 13b2-1 and 
Aiding and Abetting Violations of Exchange Act Sections 13(b)(2)(A) and 

13@)(2)(B) 

[Books and Records and Internal Controls Violations] 

45. Paragraphs 1 through 44 above are incorporated herein by this reference. 

46. Section 13(b)(5) [15 U.S.C. §78m(b)(5)1 of the Exchange Act and 

Exchange Act Rule 13b2-1 [17 C.F.R. S240.13b2-11, prohibit, among other things, 

circumvention of internal accounting controls, and falsification of corporate books, 

records and accounts. 

47. Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §78m(b)(2)(A)] 

requires public companies to make and keep books, records, and accounts which, in 

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the company's transactions and 

dispositions of its assets. Section 13(b)(2)(B) [15 U.S.C. §78m(b)(2)(B)] of the 

Exchange Act requires public companies to devise and maintain a system of internal 

accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that the company's 

transactions were recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 

conforming with GAAP. 

48. As described above, Defendant Abide knowingly circumvented existing 

internal accounting controls and falsified WorldCom's books and records. For example, 

Abide disregarded the Company's requirement that accounting entries be sufficiently 

supported with documents and that capital spending be authorized. Indeed, Abide 
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transferred asset amounts from the CIP account to in-service asset accounts and then 

booked fictional assets on WorldCom7s property accounting subledger, despite having no 

back-up paperwork supporting the entries and despite knowing that the assets he 

"created" did not in fact exist. 

--33. 3 y - r e ~ t s e m # h e - f o r e g o ~ ~ ~ A ~ d i r e e t l ~ ~ e d s - e ~ n  --

13(b)(5) and Rule 13b2- 1. 

50. WorldCom directly violated Sections 13@)(2)(A) and 13@)(2)(B) of the 

Exchange Act by failing to make and keep accurate books and records of its assets and 

failing to have sufficient internal accounting controls. As described above, Abide 

knowingly provided substantial assistance to these violations by WorldCom. Therefore, 

Abide aided and abetted WorldCom's violations of Sections 13(b)(2)(A) and 13@)(2)(B) 

of the Exchange Act, in violation of Exchange Act Section 20(a) [15 U.S.C. §78t(a)]. 

FIFTH CLAIM 

Aiding and Abetting Violations of Exchange Act Section 13(a) and Exchange Act 
Rules 12b-20,13a-1 amd 13a-13 

[Reporting Violations] 

5 1. Paragraphs 1 through 50 above are incorporated herein by this reference. 

52. Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder 

require issuers of registered securities to file with the Commission factually accurate 

annual and quarterly reports. Exchange Act Rule 12b-20 provides that in addition to the 

information expressly required to be included in a statement or report, there shall be 

added such further material information, if any, as may be necessary to make the required 

statements, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. 

53. WorldCom directly violated Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and 

Exchange Act Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, and 13a-13 by filing false and misleading financial 

statements and reports with the Commission. 



54. Defendant Abide's PP&E Roll Forward schedule was a key document 

used to prepare WorldComYs financial statements, most notably the balance sheet and 

cash flow statement. By fraudulently including improperly capitalized line costs in the 

PP&E Roll Forward schedule, Abide knowingly and substantially participated in 

Commission filings: (1) Form 10-K for the year ended 2001; and (2) Forms 10-Q for the 

quarters ended March 3 1,2001, June 30,2001, September, 30,2001, and March 3 1, 

2002. 

55. By reason of the foregoing, Abide aided and abetted WorldCom7s 

violations of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §78m(a)] and Exchange Act 

Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13 [17 C.F.R. SS240.b-20,240.13a-1 and 240.13a-131 in 

violation of Exchange Act Section 20(a) [15 U.S.C. §78t(a)]. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that this Court enter 

Orders: 

A. Permanently restraining and enjoining Abide fiom violating Section 10(b) 

of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder; 

B. Permanently restraining and enjoining Abide fiom violating Section 17(a) 

of the Securities Act; 

C. Permanently restraining and enjoining Abide fiom violating Section 

13@)(5) of Exchange Act and Rule 13b2-1 thereunder, and fiom aiding and abetting 

violations of Section 13@)(2)(A) and 13@)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act; 

D. Permanently restraining and enjoining Abide fiom aiding and abetting 

violations of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13 

thereunder; 



E. Imposing civil monetary penalties on Abide in the amount of $57,947.22 

pursuant to Section 21A(a)(2) of the Exchange Act; 

F. Ordering Abide to disgorge ill-gotten gains in the amount of $57,947.22, 

together with prejudgment interest in the amount of $12,912.20; 

-- 

- ~ O r ~ a ~ & ~ o ~ o f t k ~ ~ e s = O x ~ A - c t = ~ 0 ~ a r i  - -- 

the amount of civil penalties ordered against and paid by Abide be added to and become 

part of the WorldCom Victim Trust, a fair fund for the benefit of the victims of the 

fraudulent accounting scheme at WorldCom; and 

H. Granting such other and additional relief as this Court may deem just and 

proper. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Peter H. Bresnan (PB 9168) 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Arthur S. Lowry (AL 9541) 
3 World Financial Center Fredric D.  irei it one 
Room 16112 Gerald W. Hodgkins 
New York, NY 10281-1022 Sharan K.S. Custer 
New York, New York 10279 
(212) 336-1050 (telephone) Counsel for the Plaintiff 
(212) 336-1317 (fax) Securities and Exchange Commission 

100 F St., N.E. 
Washington, D.C. 20549-4030 
(202) 55 1-49 18 (Lowry) 
(202) 772-9245 (Fax) 

Dated: July 27, 2006 


